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1432 Court Place, Denver's oldest known remaining domestic dwelling in the
aowntown area, was erected in 1338, It sits on a 25 foot lot, which was the standard
size for residential lots in the 13th century in Denver. It is mid-block with commerci
buildings occupying the rest of the area. The house faces southeast across Court
Place from a half Dleck parking Tot that is behind the annex to the City and
County suildina.

The facade of this two and one half story, sidehall townhousc is sandstone
witii rhyolite foundation. The pitch-faced sandstone facade features random ashlar
coursing, tie original red beaded wmortar joints, and a water table with tooled
adge.

The late-nineteenth century vernacular dwelling is architecturally significant
because of the unusual combination of architectural details which are repeated in
both stone and wood compositions. The first floor double-hung bay sashes are
trimmed with unusual sandstone details such as lug sills, billet banding, and lintels
with tooled crossets. The second floor arched windows are trimmed with keystones and
voussoirs. Below the center and north windows of the facade's bay is a symetrically
carved sandstone ornamentation.

The center section of the two-story bay with hexagonal roof is surmounted by
a diapered gable end, once topped by an apexstone, and flanked by brooch towers.

An unusual sandstone belt course with recessed circles is located at the second
floor level below the lintel springers.

The original wooden cornice with recessed panelled frieze features billet
banding reminiscent of the details reproduced in stone above the first floor bay
windows.

The slate roof is tonped by an unusual turned balustrade with a band of recessed
circles, Tike the second-story belt course, at the base.

The side stepped-parapet walls are stuccoed and the brick rear of the residence
is laid in a common bond pattern with arched lintels above the fenestration.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Tne Curry-Chucovich house is significant because it is the oldest known example of
1880's domestic architecture remaining in downtown Denver, and because it possesses a
unique combination of architectural details. It is also significant because two of
its owners, James ii. Curry, the proprietor of the Douglas County Lava Quarries, and
Vasco L. Chucovich, a renowned gambler and associate of Denver's Hayor Speer, were
important figures in the history of the city.

In 1887 ir. James !i. Curry purchased the land at 1432 Court Place from Samuel
fiorgan and hired architect Fred A. Hale to design his new home. Mr. Curry, a well-known
Denver citizcn, was the proprietor of the Douglas County Lava Quarries. These quarries
made a significant contribution to the architectural heritage of Denver because the
stone was used in many well-known buildings such as the 01d Union Railroad Depot, Saint
Elizabetih's Church in Auraria (iational Register and Denver Landmark - 1969), Trinity
viethodist [piscopal Church (iiational Register - 1372 and Denver Landmark - 1963),the
{ittredge Building (liational Register nomination pending),the Ghost Building (Hational
Register nowination pending), the Tabor Grand Opera House trim (demolished), Yolfc
Fall (demolished), South Broadway Christian Church, and many residences of prominent
Jenver citizens which include those of Charles B. ilountz, Otto Mears and Joseph
Creswell; it was also used in the foundation and trim fer the Charles Boettcher
residence and the foundation and coping and front steps of Hr. Curry's own house and
seven large mansions in Capitol Hill on Pennsylvania Street between 8th and 13th Avenues
where the stone was used extensively for foundations, window sills, door arches, and
carden walls.

ir. Hale, the architect, was born in Rochester, Hew York, on Christmas of 1255 and
moved with ais parents to the Central City - Blackhawk mining area in Colorado in 1360.
In 1875 he returned to Rochester to school and reccived a scholarship to Cornell
Universit; where he studied architecture. lle returned to Colorado in 1830 and
started his own practice in 1883. In the early 1£90's he moved to Salt Lake City to
design and superintend the construction of a modern commercial building. To date there
is no record that he ever returned to Denver.

Hr. Curry's house was completed late in 1883. An account in the estern Architect
and Building Hdews briefly describes the house as "a genuine two story brownstone front"
with the interior finished in richly carved wood and windows screened with Venetian
blinds of oak. The walls and ceilings were treated in "a chaste and happy style,
fresco and lincrusta-walton relief work. The staircase was approached through an
archway of intricate arabesque fretwork in oak". To nave received such an account
indicated that the house was of architectural importance at the time it was constructed.

In 1892 Hr. Curry died and left the house to his widow Alice who lost it through
debts to iliss Sarah Hunt who in turn died in 1902 and willed it to Vasco L. Chucovich.

fr. Chucovich moved to the house on Court Place from the Oxford Hotel, where he was
living at the time. e was born in Risan, Yugoslavia, in 1353 and at the ace of 19,
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in 1877, he imnmigrated to the United States and traveled to the gold fields of
California, ilevada and Co]orado, accumulating wealth and gambling skills as he went.
Chucovich arr1vad in Denver in 1395 and quickly became an associate of Edward Chase, czar
of Denver's saloons and gambling halls and close friend of Robert Speer, who later became
ilayor of Denver.

One of Chase's chief holdings and finest gambling halls in Denver was the Arcade
Restaurant at 1611-13 Larimer Street which was ultimately owned by Vasco Chucovich. It
had a 30 foot solid mahogany bar, French plate glass mirrors, 600 chandeliers, and was
reputedly frequented by Zat !Masterson and Dead-Eye Dick, according to one newspaper
account.

Vasco Chucovich invested in real estate and became involved in local politics. le
was supportive of Robert Speer in the 1904 and 1216 campaigns for mayor. Because of his
connections in the political and social element of Denver's societv, he was able to foretell
all administrative policies and decisions where gambling was concerned. Among his
intimate friends were [fayor Speer, Henry L. Hoherty, itichael Pupin (ilobel Prize winner
and scientist and boyhood friend), David H. Moffat, and Willian G. Evans. He was con-
sidered one of Denver's most powerful behind-the-scenes political figures.

Periodically Mayor Speer prevailed upon Chase and Chucovich to donate substantial
sums to his programs for the needy and to Judge Ben Lindsey's Juvenile Improvement
Association. In return Chase and Chucovich's violations of the liquor and gambling
ordinances were overlooked. llowever, in 1907 a new state law required the closing of all
gambling establishments, so Chucovich closed the gambling hall of the Arcade Restaurant,
but continued to operate the saloon and restaurant. Chucovich also gave financial support
to Benjamin J. Stapelton in his 1923 campaiqgn for Mayor.

Through his real estate holdings Chucovich becane a wealthy man,and when he died
in 1933 he left an estate of over one million dollars. One hundred thousand of this was
to be used for a memorial to Mayor Speer; but instead the money was used to build the
children's wing at Denver General Hospital. There was also a substantial sum left over
to build a hospital in Chucovich's home town in Yugoslavia,

Today the nouse at 1439 Court Place is used for law offices by William E. Myrich and
Florton Fichey. It will remain as offices as well as a delightful and charming reminder
of the residential neighborhood that was once' in the downtown section of Denver.
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Item 2: Location

The description of the outlying boundaries of the area within which is
located the primary district:

Arapahoe Street on the northwest, 30th Street on the northeast, the alley
between California and Welton Streets on the southeast, and 23rd Street on
the southwest.

The district proper is described as being bounded by: beginning at the in-
tersection of 25th Street and Arapahoe Street, then along Arapahoe Street

to 26th Street, then along 26th Street to the alley between Arapahoe and
Curtis Streets, then along the alley to 30th Street, then along 30th Street
to Curtis Street, then along Curtis Street to 29th Street, then along 29th §t.
to the alley between Curtis and Champa Streets, then along the alley to
30th Street, then along 30th Street to Stout Street, then along Stout Street
to 28th Street, then along 28th Street to the alley between Stout and
California Streets, then along the alley to 27th Street, then along 27th
Street to California Street, then along California Street to 26th Street,
then aﬂong 26th Street to the alley between California and Welton Streets,
then along the alley to 25th Street, then along 25th Street to California
Street, then along California Street to 24th Street, then along 24th Street
to Stout Street, then along Stout Street to 23rd Street, then along 23rd
Street to the alley between Champa and Stout Streets, then along the alley
to 25th Street, then along 25th Street to the alley between Curtis and
Champa Streets, then along the alley to 26th Street, then along 26th Street
to €Gurtis Street, then along Curtis Street to 25th Street, then along

25th Street to Arapahoe Street, the point of beginning.
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